2006

# Kenneth Raymond Lowry v. Judith Wanda Lowry : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

## JURISDICTION OF THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS

Jurisdiction is proper in the Utah Court of Appeals pursuant to Utah Code §78-2a-3(2)(h).

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

### ISSUE NO. 1

Did the Trial Court correctly award attorney's fees to the Appellee?

### STANDARD OF REVIEW

The appellate court will not overturn a trial court's award of attorney's fees absent a clear showing the trial court abused its discretion. Wilde v. Wilde, 969 P.2d 438, 442, 444 (Utah Ct. App. 1998).

### PRESERVATION OF THE ISSUE

This issue was preserved in proposed findings of fact and in post trial motions. (R. 148, p. 9; R. 184, p. 6; R. 338, p. 5).

### ISSUE NO. 2

Did the Trial Court err in signing the proposed order within four days after the same being filed with the court and served upon the Appellant?

### STANDARD OF REVIEW

Questions of law are reviewed for correctness according no deference to the trial court's legal conclusions. Bearden v. Wardley Corp., 72 P.3d 144 (Utah Ct. App. 2003).

### PRESERVATION OF THE ISSUE

This issue was preserved in post trial motions. (R. 270, p. 4).

### ISSUE NO. 3

Did the Trial Court err in its division and valuation of the marital residence?

#### STANDARD OF REVIEW

Factual determinations made by a court are reviewed under a clearly erroneous standard. Kunz v. Dept. of Transportation, 949 P.2d 763 (Utah 1997); Rule 52(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The standard of review of a trial court's division of property in a divorce case is "an abuse of discretion." Hall v. Hall, 858 P.2d 1018 (Utah Ct. App. 1993).

#### PRESERVATION OF THE ISSUE

This issue was preserved in oral argument and in post trial motions. (R. 421, p. 44, 12 – 23; R. 421, p. 45, 20 – 25, - p.49; R. 421, p. 8, 17-25, - p. 9, 1-7).

### ISSUE NO. 4

Did the trial court err in awarding the Appellee a portion of the Appellant's inheritance?

#### STANDARD OF REVIEW

Factual determinations made by a court are reviewed under a clearly erroneous standard. Kunz v. Dept. of Transportation, 949 P.2d 763 (Utah 1997); Rule 52(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The standard of review of a trial court's division of property in a divorce case is "an abuse of discretion." Hall v. Hall, 858 P.2d 1018 (Utah Ct. App. 1993).

#### PRESERVATION OF THE ISSUE

This issue was preserved in oral argument and in post trial motions. (R148, p.5; R. 421, p. 33, 6-16; R. 421, p. 95, 7-25; R. 421, p. 96, 1-14; R. 421, p. 98, 2-9; R. 184, p. 5).



## ISSUE NO. 5

Did The Trial Court Err In Its Division Of Certain Items Of Personal Property And Debt Between The Parties?

### STANDARD OF REVIEW

Factual determinations made by a court are reviewed under a clearly erroneous standard. Kunz v. Dept. of Transportation, 949 P.2d 763 (Utah 1997); Rule 52(a), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The standard of review of a trial court's division of property in a divorce case is "an abuse of discretion." Hall v. Hall, 858 P.2d 1018 (Utah Ct. App. 1993).

### PRESERVATION OF THE ISSUE

This issue was preserved in oral argument and in post trial motions. (R. 421, p. 66, 14-20; R148, p. 4, 5, 6,7; R. 148, p. 6; R. 421, p. 95, 11-17; R. 421, p.96, 1-6; R. 184, p.5; R. 148, p.6, 7; R. 421, p. 92, 18 – p. 93, 15; R. 421, p. 92, 18 – p. 93, 15; R. 421, R. 338, p. 5).

### DETERMINATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES, ORDINANCES AND RULES

Utah Constitution Art. 1, §7  
Utah Code Ann. §30-3-3  
Utah Code Ann. §30-3-5  
Utah Code Ann. §78-2a-3(2)(h)  
Rule 7(f)(2) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure  
Rule 26(3) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure  
Rule 52(a) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

#### 1. NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a final Order and Judgments of the Fifth District Court of Utah, Washington County, State of Utah, Honorable James L. Shumate, and related findings of fact and conclusions of law, entered on November 21, 2005, relating to the division of marital and separate property, division of marital debt, award of alimony, and award of attorneys fees and costs.

2. STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. The Appellee and Appellant were married on August 20, 1960, in Dalton, Massachusetts. (R. 303, p. 2).

B. The parties separated on March 12, 2004 when the Appellee moved from the martial home. This was two days after the Appellant underwent heart surgery. (R. 303, p. 2 – 3; R421, p.79, 1; R. 148, p. 2).

C. After the Appellee moved from the marital home, she returned while the Appellant was absent and removed all documents and other items from a filing cabinet in the home. The majority of such documents were the personal property of the Appellant were not marital documents. Additionally, the Appellee removed \$400.00 in cash from such filing cabinet. (R. 148, p.6).

D. A Bifurcated Decree of Divorce was entered on July 28, 2004. (R. 43).

E. Temporary Orders were entered on August 10, 2004, which among other things

i. Awarded the Appellee \$1,500.00 per month as temporary alimony.

ii. Awarded the Appellee the temporary use and possession of the home and furnishings.

iii. Awarded the Appellee the temporary use and possession of the 1997 Cadillac Deville and the Appellant temporary use and possession of the 2000 GMC Truck.

iv. Awarded the Appellee a lump sum support payment of \$5,000.00.

v. Awarded each party one-half of the Exxon Retirement Portion of an American Funds account; and

vi. Ordered the Appellant to maintain the Appellee on his health, medical, dental and optical insurance and submit the costs thereof to the Court at the time of trial. (R. 49; R. 148, p.2).

F. As a result of the split of the Exxon Retirement account under the Court's August 10, 2004 Temporary Order, the Appellee and Appellant were each awarded funds of approximately \$125,000.00. (R. 49; R. 421, p. 26, 24-25; R. 148, p. 3).

G. The issues at trial involved the Appellee's claim for alimony and the division of marital assets consisting of a home located at 1020 East Fort Pierce Drive, St. George, Utah, furniture and household furnishings, vehicles, and certain accounts. (R. 421 p. 3, 24-25, p. 8, 3-5; R148, p. 3).

H. The Appellee presented evidence at trial attempting to establish that the Appellant had engaged in an extramarital affair. Such evidence was disputed and rebutted by the Appellant and the court found no evidence that an extramarital affair had occurred. (R. 421, p.70 – p. 89, 1-7; R. 148, p. 3).

I. At the time of trial the Appellee testified that she received the sum of \$635.00 per month from Social Security and \$180.73 per month from her retirement plan.



(R. 421, p.8, 8-14; Trial Exhibit 2; ). She later testified at a post trial hearing that her social security was reduced by \$75.00 a month. (R. 422, p.5, 19-25, p.6, 1-12).

J. The Appellee alleged that her monthly expenses exceeded her current income by \$2,489.16. (R. 421, p. 10, 20-25; R. 148, p. 3).

K. The Appellant receives \$1,200.00 per month from Social Security. The Appellant also works as a real estate agent. During 2004, the Appellant received gross commissions from real estate sales in the amount of \$47,276.43. Of these commissions, the Appellant received more than half of such commissions (\$27,600.00) from one sale of a commercial property. This sale was an unusual event and a one-time occurrence. From January 1, 2005 until the date of trial, March 1, 2005, the Appellant had received on commission the amount of \$1,018.12. Thus, the normal average gross commissions earned by the Appellant from January 1, 2004 through March 1, 2005 is \$1,476.06 per month. (R421, p. 11, 10-13; p. 12, 1-10; p. 22, 20-24; R. 148, p. 3-4).

L. In earning commissions, the Appellant is required to pay certain business expenses. Evidence presented by the Appellant reflected the payment of business expenses and taxes in an amount of at least \$23,182.60. (R. 421, p. 12, 5-10; R. 421, p. 39, 6-18; Trial Exhibit 19). Thus, the expenses incurred by the Appellant in the operation of his business exceed his normal average gross commissions by \$2,488.05. If the one-time commission of \$27,600.00 is added to determine net income, the Appellant's net income would only average \$1,245.58 per month. (R. 148, p.4).

M. In conducting his business the Appellant has formed a "Team" with other real estate agents in his office. Such an arrangement is informal and allows the team

members to assist each other and divide commissions accordingly. (R. 421, p. 66, 14-20; R148, p. 4).

N. The parties both maintain bank accounts into which their Social Security and retirement income is deposited. (R148, p. 4).

O. In conducting his business activities, the Appellant maintains accounts at State Bank of Southern Utah. Such accounts hold funds deposited by the Appellant and other Team members and funds derived from the real estate efforts of the Appellant and other Team members. (R. 148, p.5; R. 184, p. 3).

P. During the term of the marriage the parties each received an inheritance as a result of the death of their parents. (R. 421, p. 36, 3-8; Trial Exhibit #7; Trial Exhibit #25; R. 148, p. 5).

Q. The Appellee received cash inheritance and General Electric Stock. The Appellee deposited all cash received by her as inheritance into a separate account and informed the Appellant that such sums were the Appellee's. At Trial, the Appellee alleged that she had spent all of the cash received by her as inheritance. (R148, p.5).

R. The Appellant received cash inheritance of approximately \$80,000.00 and certain items of household furnishings. The Appellant's inheritance was put into an account with American Funds. The Appellee demanded that such sums be placed into an account in both of the parties' names for estate planning purposes. However, at all times, the Appellant exercised exclusive control over such funds, the parties treated the funds as Appellant's separate funds, the Appellee made no withdrawals from or otherwise dealt with the Appellant's inheritance account, and the Appellant exclusively determined for

what purpose such funds would be used. (R148, p.5; Trial Exhibit #7; Trial Exhibit #25; R. 421, p. 33, 6-16; R. 421, p. 95, 7-25; R. 421, p. 96, 1-14; R. 421, p. 98, 2-9; R. 184, p. 5)

S. The Appellant used \$10,000.00 from his inheritance to pay toward the purchase of the 1997 Cadillac Deville. The Appellant also used his inheritance funds to purchase a 2000 GMC truck. (R. 148, p. 6; Trial Exhibit #25; R. 421, p. 95, 11-17; R. 421, p.96, 1-6; R. 184, p.5).

T. After the separation and divorce of the parties, the Appellee was involved in a traffic accident which totaled the Cadillac Deville. The Appellee subsequently purchased, in her own name, a 2002 Toyota Camry. The Appellee made no reimbursement to the Appellant for the funds from the Appellant's inheritance used to purchase the Cadillac Deville and did not credit the Appellant with any funds received from insurance on account of the damage to the vehicle. (R. 148, p.6).

U. As part of his inheritance, the Appellant received a bed, dresser, 2 bedroom end tables, coffee table, 2 living room end tables, lamp table, crystal lamp, large mirror, marble top table, 2 blue chairs, and a chair used by the parties in their master bathroom. (R. 148, p.6).

V. After the parties' separation, the Appellant paid to or for the benefit of the Appellee, the sum of \$6,685.85. The majority of this expense was to pay for medical insurance premiums and expenses, payment of credit card expenses incurred by the Appellee, payment of auto insurance covering the Cadillac in the possession of the



Appellee, and to put money into a joint account after the Appellee had depleted the funds in the account. (R. 148, p.6; Trial Exhibit 23; Trial Exhibit 24).

W. After the parties' separation and until the date of judgment, the Appellant paid insurance premiums of \$840.00 to maintain medical insurance solely on the Appellee. Additionally, the Appellant was required to pay \$1,477.19 in co-pay amounts for services rendered to the Appellee. (R. 421, p. 92, 18 – p. 93, 15), Such payments were necessary due to the Court's August 10, 2004 temporary order and so as not to jeopardize the Appellant's own coverage. (R. 148, p.7).

X. Between August 10, 2004 and the date of trial, the Appellant paid the Appellee \$18,500.00 in temporary alimony. (R. 148, p.7).

Y. The Appellee is 64 years of age and suffers from several health problems. While this may limit her ability to work, it does not deprive her of such ability. (R. 421, p. 18, 9 - p. 21, 22; Trial Exhibit #6 ; R. 421, p.43, 6-16; R. 148, p.7).

Z. The Appellant is 67 years of age and works as a real estate agent. The Appellant suffers from several health problems, including heart problems, which have, and will, affect his ability to work. His doctor has advised him that he should cut back on his activities, including employment. (R421, p. 11, 22-25; R. 421, p. 22, 16 – p. 26, 4; R. 148, p.7).

AA. At the time the parties purchased the marital home, each party withdrew \$8,000.00 from accounts holding funds each had inherited and used such funds toward the purchase of the home. (R. 148, p. 8; R. 184, p. 4).

BB. At trial, the Appellee presented expert testimony from an appraiser regarding the value of the marital home. The Appellant objected to such evidence being presented as the identity, opinion, and basis of the opinion of the expert witness had not been previously disclosed by the Appellee to the Appellant. The Court overruled the objection as to the expert's testimony and allowed the appraiser to testify but did not admit the appraisal report into evidence. (R. 421, p. 44, 12 – 23; R. 421, p. 45, 20 – 25, - p.49; R. 421, p. 8, 17-25, - p. 9, 1-7).

CC. The Court also heard testimony from the Appellant, a real estate agent, and another real estate agent who works with the Appellant, as to the value of the home. Both testified that the home was worth between \$209,000.00 and \$215,000.00. (R. 421, p. 51 – p. 56; R. 421, p.45, 1).

DD. There exists a debt on the home in the amount of \$82,042.71. (R. 303, p. 8; Trial Exhibit #12).

EE. No evidence was presented at trial nor was any claim asserted at trial by Appellee that the Appellant should pay the GM credit card expense. (R. 421, R. 338, p. 5).

FF. The parties have no minor children as issue of this marriage. (R. 303, p.3).

GG. After trial on this matter, the parties submitted proposed findings of fact, conclusions of law and judgments. (R. 144, R. 148, and R. 161).

HH. Several months later, the Appellant filed a motion with the Court to terminate the award of temporary alimony to the Appellee. This motion was based upon

certain health problems experienced by the Appellant which limited his ability to work. (R. 242).

II. The Court set a hearing on Appellant's motion to terminate alimony. However, due to a conflict in timing, the Appellant obtained a verbal agreement from the Appellee to continue the hearing and filed a motion and order to continue with the Court. The hearing was not set for a resolution of the parties' proposed findings. (R. 270 p. 1-2, 5).

KK. On the original date set for the hearing, the Appellee appeared and requested that the matter go forward as no order continuing the hearing had been entered. The Court denied the Appellant's motion to terminate alimony, (R. 422, p. 3, 16-21). took a proffer of evidence as to the Appellee's then claimed income, (R. 422, p.5, 23-25 and p.6 1-5) edited, at the bench, a draft of the Court's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of law, (R. 422, p.7, 19-23) and awarded the Appellee judgment against the Appellant in accordance with the Appellee's request. This hearing was not noticed up for a resolution of the proposed Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law. (R. 422, R. 270, p. 5).

LL. The Appellant filed a motion to reconsider with the Court. A hearing was held thereon, after which the Court modified to some degree the prior Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. These modifications formed the basis for the final Order and Judgments. (R. 270 and R. 423).

MM. The Appellee mailed the final proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order and Judgments to Appellant on November 17, 2005. (R. 303 and R. 328).



NN. Four days after the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order and Judgments were mailed to the Appellant, the Court entered the same. (R. 303. and R. 328).

OO. The Appellant filed his Notice of Appeal on December 20, 2005. (R. 348).

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

#### Issue No. 1

The Trial Court failed to make a finding as to the Appellant's expenses and his ability to pay attorney's fees. The Trial Court also failed to take into account the Appellant's own attorney's fees. The Trial Court erred in awarding the Appellee her attorney's fees when she received ample assets from the marital estate to satisfy her own attorney's fees where there was no finding of bad faith.

#### Issue No. 2

The Trail Court entered the final Order and Judgments just four days after it was filed and served upon the Appellant, thus denying the Appellant due process and violated Rule 7 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

#### Issue No. 3

The Trial Court allowed the testimony of the Appellee's appraiser when he was never disclosed prior to the morning of trial as required by Rule 26 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The Trial Court should have valued the house higher than \$185,000.00 given the fact that the market was "hot" and the Appellant and his witness, both real estate agents testified that the house would sell between \$209,000 and \$215,000.00.

#### Issue No. 4

The Trial Court erred in finding that the Appellant's inheritance was commingled and lost his identity wherein the inherited funds were deposited into a joint account that only the Appellant exercised control over.

#### Issue No. 5

The Trial Court erred in awarding an account that the Appellant shared with his other team members in his real estate business, ordering the Appellant to pay the debt to the GMC Credit Card, awarding half of the value of the 2000 GMC truck to the Appellee and not awarding half of the value of the 2002 Toyota Camry or the insurance proceeds from the wreck of the 1997 Cadillac Deville.

### ARGUMENTS

#### Issue No. 1

Did The Trial Court Correctly Award Attorney's Fees To The Appellee?

Utah Code Ann. §30-3-3 allows for the award of attorney's fees in a divorce action. However, unless the action is an enforcement action where substantially prevailed on the merits is the standard, the court must look at the parties' ability to pay in determining whether an award of attorney's fees is appropriate or not.

In Wilde v. Wilde, the Utah Supreme Court stated, "A trial court may award costs and attorney fees in divorce and modification proceedings. See Utah Code Ann. §30-3-3 (1995), Crockett v. Crockett, 836 P.2d 818, 821 (Utah Ct. App. 1992). Both the decision to award attorney fees and the amount of such fees are within the trial court's sound discretion. See Crouse v. Crouse, 817 P.2d 836, 839 (Utah Ct. App. 1991). However, 'the

award [or denial of such fees] must be based on evidence of the financial need of the receiving spouse, the ability of the other spouse to pay, and the reasonableness of the requested fees,' Bell v. Bell, 810 P.2d 489, 493 (Utah Ct. App. 1991). Failure to consider these factors is grounds for reversal on the fee issue. See Marshall v. Marshall, 915 P.2d 508, 517 (Utah Ct. App. 1996)." Wilde v. Wilde, 969 P.2d 438, 444 (Utah 1998).

The appellate court will not overturn a trial court's award of attorney's fees absent a clear showing the trial court abused its discretion. Wilde v. Wilde, 969 P.2d 438, 442, 444 (Utah Ct. App. 1998).

The Trial Court did make the following findings related to the award of attorney's fees in its Order and Judgments, "The Appellee has incurred costs and attorney fees herein in the sum of Fifteen Thousand Two Hundred Fifty-seven Dollars Sixty-nine Cents (\$15,257.69), through trial. The Appellee borrowed Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$3,500.00), from her son to pay a retainer to her counsel at the commencement of this action. The Appellee's counsel submitted an Attorney's Affidavit specifying the service performed and the charges therefore. The Attorney fees the Appellee agreed to pay is \$175.00 per hour plus the costs of the case. The hourly rate is reasonable in light of the circumstances of this case and the fees of other experienced lawyers in the community and the services performed for the Appellee by her counsel were reasonable and necessary. The Appellee does not have the ability to compensate her counsel and the Appellant has the ability to pay the Appellee's costs and attorney fees from his employment and other income and other assets. The Appellant should be ordered to pay



the Appellee's costs and attorney fees incurred herein in the sum of \$10,000.00, . . ." (R. 303, p.13).

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