2006

Judith Wanda Lowry v. Kenneth Ray Lowry : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENTS

The trial court's award of attorney fees and costs to the Petitioner should be affirmed. The appellant has failed to make a minimal effort to marshal the evidence in support of the trial court's findings and has made no

effort to demonstrate that the trial court's decision was clearly erroneous. The appeal upon this issue is frivolous and without merit. The Appellee should be awarded her costs and attorney fees incurred upon this appeal pursuant to Rule 33, of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

Mr. Lowry had his days in court. His objections were repeatedly considered by the trial court and ruled upon thrice. He has not established that he was deprived of a single item of his property. Mr. Lowry was afforded, and re-afforded, due process of law. The trial court had heard his position at trial, twice considered his objections to the findings, orders and judgments and made modifications thereto based upon his objections.

The Respondent and Appellant's argument that his right of due process under Article I, Section 7, of the Constitution of Utah and Rule 7, of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure is without merit and is frivolous. He cites no facts and no authority, nor makes an argument in his brief in support of his position. Judith Wanda Lowry should be awarded her costs and attorney fees upon this appeal pursuant to Rule 33, of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. The Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Orders and Judgments of the trial court should be affirmed.

All of the trial court's findings of fact and the evidence presented at trial support the valuation and disposition of the marital residence. The trial court considered the facts in the record and made the required findings necessary in valuing and disposing of the marital residence. The trial court was cognizant of and considered the trial testimony about the value of the marital residence. Mr. Lowry's argument based upon nothing more than his mere dissatisfaction with the award does not show an abuse of discretion by the trial court valuing and dividing the marital residence.

The appellant has wholly failed to make even a minimal effort to marshal the evidence in support of the trial court's findings and has made no effort to demonstrate that the trial court's decision was clearly erroneous. The appeal upon this issue is frivolous and without merit. The trial court's valuation and division of the marital residence should be affirmed. The Appellee should be awarded her costs and attorney fees incurred upon this appeal pursuant to Rule 33, of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

All of the trial court's findings of fact and the evidence presented at trial support the findings and the disposition of the joint American Funds account. The trial court considered and addressed the facts in the record

and made the required findings necessary in determining whether the account had been commingled and had become marital property. The trial court was cognizant of and considered the trial testimony about the parties' use of the account. Mr. Lowry's argument based upon nothing more than his mere dissatisfaction with the findings and award does not show an abuse of discretion by the trial court by finding the monies were marital property.

The appellant has wholly failed to make even a minimal effort to marshal the evidence in support of the trial court's findings and has made no effort to demonstrate that the trial court's decision was clearly erroneous. The appeal upon this issue is frivolous and without merit. The trial court's findings and award of the joint American Funds account should be affirmed. Judith Wanda Lowry should be awarded her costs and attorney fees incurred upon this appeal pursuant to Rule 33, of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

The trial court's division of the personal property and single debt should be affirmed. The appellant has failed to make even a minimal effort to marshal the evidence in support of the trial court's findings and has made no effort to demonstrate that the trial court's decision was clearly erroneous.

The appeal upon this issue is frivolous and without merit. Judith Lowry was awarded nothing more than one-half (1/2), of the value of the marital assets. The trial court's division of the marital assets and debt should be affirmed. Judith Wanda Lowry should be awarded her costs and attorney fees incurred upon this appeal pursuant to Rule 33, of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

THE ARGUMENTS

THE APPELLANT HAS FAILED TO MARSHALL THE EVIDENCE AND SHOW THAT THE TRIAL COURT'S DECISION IS CLEARLY ERRONEOUS AND THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY AWARDED THE PETITIONER ATTORNEY FEES

The Respondent and Appellant, Kenneth Ray Lowry, challenges the trial court's award of partial attorney fees to the Petitioner and Appellee, Judith Wanda Lowry. Mr. Lowry urges this Court to reverse the trial court's award of attorney fees to Mrs. Lowry because Mr. Lowry incurred his own attorney fees and because the trial court "failed to take into account the Appellant's own expenses in determining the Appellant's ability to pay attorney's fees."

The appellant does not challenge the trial court's findings of fact and he only makes a cursory attempt to marshal the evidence in support of the trial court's award of attorney fees and costs to Judith Lowry. In *Bolliger v. Bolliger*, 997 P.2d 903 (Utah Ct. App. 2000), this Court held that an award of attorney fees will be upheld where there is no challenge by the appellant to any of the findings of fact entered by the trial court in support of the award of attorney fees.

Not only does the appellant not challenge the trial court's factual findings in support of the award of attorney fees, he fails to marshal "every scrap of competent evidence" in the record in support of the trial court's decision to award Judith Lowry partial attorney fees and "ferret out a fatal flaw in the evidence," and demonstrate how the trial court's award of attorney fees is "clearly erroneous." In *West Valley City v. Majestic Inv. Co.*, 818 P.2d 1311, 1315 (Utah App. 1991), this Court states:

In order to properly discharge the duty of marshaling the evidence, the challenger must present, in comprehensive and fastidious order, every scrap of competent evidence introduced at trial which *supports* the very findings the appellant resists. After constructing this magnificent array of supporting evidence, the challenger must ferret out a fatal flaw in the evidence. The gravity of this flaw must be sufficient to

convince the appellate court that the court's finding resting upon the evidence is clearly erroneous.

See also, McPherson v. Belnap, 830 P.2d 302, 305 (Utah App. 1992)(appellant failed to demonstrate, after marshaling the evidence, that the trial court's findings were clearly erroneous), and *Stewart v. Board of Review*, 831 P.2d 134, 138 ((Utah App. 1992)(Once the evidence is listed or marshaled with appropriate citation to the record, the appellant must then demonstrate that the marshaled evidence is legally insufficient to support the findings when viewing the evidence and inferences in a light most favorable to the decision).

On April 1, 2005, a month after the trial, the Respondent's counsel filed an affidavit of attorney fees the trial court presumably considered, when it awarded the Petitioner her costs and attorney fees. (*R. 127-140*)

The appellant claims the trial court "failed to take into account the Appellant's own expenses in determining the Appellant's ability to pay attorney's fees." The statement is simply untrue and frivolous. Mr. Lowry, submitted Exhibits 19, and 20, to the trial court which listed his expenses and was examined at trial upon the exhibits in detail. *Respondent's Exhibits*

19, 20, *Tr. 14, 90-94*. The exhibits listed his expenses for the years 2003, 2004, and 2005. Additionally, Mr. Lowry's friend, fellow employee, and office manager at Century 21, Russell Gwilliam, was examined regarding which of the office expenses Mr. Lowry pays, those paid by Century 21, and the trial court considered his testimony. *Tr.62-66*.

Moreover, the trial court was cognizant of many other facts in the record, not listed or marshaled by Mr. Lowry in his brief, which supported the award of attorney fees to Judith Lowry. For example, the length of the marriage (*Tr. 10*), Judith Lowry's monthly living expenses and income (*Tr. 10-11, Petitioner's Exhibits 27, 12*), Mr. Lowry's medical condition (*Tr. 11, 22-26*), Mr. Lowry's social security income (*Tr. 11, 27*), Mr. Lowry's Century 21 income (*Tr. 12, 22, 27, Exhibits 10, 18, 31*), Mr. Lowry's other recent income (*Exhibit 8*), the retirement which had not been distributed (*Tr. 15-16*), Mrs. Lowry's total disability and extensive medical problems (*Tr. 18-22, Exhibit 6*), Mr. Lowry's expenses, debts and obligations (*Tr. 27-28, Exhibits 13, 19, 24, 28*), Mrs. Lowry's attorneys fees and costs (*Tr. 41, R. 119-123*), Mr. Lowry's attorney fees and costs which the trial court

presumably considered because they were part of the record at the time of the entry of the findings of fact and judgments. (*R. 127-140*).

The appellant merely presents a few selected facts in support of his own position omitting many facts supporting the trial courts award of attorney fees to Judith Lowry. The appellant has not properly marshaled, “in comprehensive and fastidious order, every scrap of competent evidence” introduced at trial which supports the very findings the appellant resists. *West Valley City v. Majestic Inv. Co.*, *id.*

Just as importantly, the appellant has failed to demonstrate that the trial court’s findings and decision were clearly erroneous, or otherwise legally insufficient, when viewing the evidence and inferences in a light most favorable to the decision. *Stewart*, *id.*; *McPehrson*, *id.*

All of the trial court’s findings of fact support the award of attorney fees and costs to Judith Lowry. (*R. 303-327*) The trial court considered and addressed the facts in the record and made the three required findings necessary in awarding attorney’s fees, i.e., the receiving spouse’s financial need, the payor spouse’s ability to pay, and the reasonableness of the requested fees, (*R. 303-327*), and was cognizant of and considered the trial

testimony and many exhibits identified above. Mr. Lowry's argument based upon nothing more than his dissatisfaction with the award does not show an abuse of discretion by the trial court awarding Judith Lowry a portion of her attorney fees in the action. *Childs v. Childs*, 967 P.2d 942 (Utah Ct. App. 1998), cert. denied, 982 P.2d 88 (Utah 1999).

Mr. Lowry has failed to make even a minimal effort to marshal the evidence in support of the trial court's findings and he has made no effort, and failed to demonstrate that the trial court's decision was clearly erroneous. The appeal upon this issue is frivolous and without merit. The trial court's award of attorney fees and costs to Judith Wanda Lowry should be affirmed. Mrs. Lowry should be awarded her attorney fees incurred upon this appeal pursuant to Rule 33, of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. *Eames v. Eames*, 735 P.2d 395 (Utah Ct. App. 1987); *Maughan v. Maughan*, 770 P.2d 156 (Utah Ct. App. 1989).

THE APPELLANT WAS AFFORDED DUE PROCESS IN THE TRIAL COURT. HE WAIVED HIS OBJECTIONS BY UNTIMELY FILING THE OBJECTIONS AND FAILING TO PROPERLY BRING THE ISSUE BEFORE THE TRIAL COURT FOR RESOLUTION

The Respondent and Appellant, Kenneth Ray Lowry, contends that he was denied his right of due process guaranteed by Article 1, Section 7, of the Utah Constitution because the trial court executed the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Orders and Judgment four days after the mailing of the documents to the trial court and Respondent's counsel. (R. 303-327, 328-335.)

"Due process of law" requires that, before one can be bound by a judgment affecting his property rights, some process must be served upon him which in some degree at least is calculated to give him notice. *Naisbitt v. Herrick*, 290 P. 950 (Utah 1930). See also, *Christensen v. Harris*, 163 P.2d 314 (Utah 1945)(a party shall have his day in court.)

The Appellant's claim is untrue, meritless and frivolous. A review of the record reveals the following:

The trial court directed counsel for the Petitioner and the Respondent to prepare their proposed findings of fact, conclusions of law and proposed orders and judgments at the trial on March 1, 2005; (Tr. 94-98, R. 124).

The Respondent, Kenneth Ray Lowry, submitted to the trial court the Respondent's Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and the

Respondent's Proposed Judgment Dividing Property and Liabilities on April 1, 2005 (*R. 144-147, 148-160*);

On April 8, 2005, the Petitioner submitted her Objections to Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment (*R. 161-174*);

On April 9, 2005, the Petitioner submitted her proposed Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Orders and Judgments to the trial court and to the Respondent. On April 22, 2005, Respondent filed Objection to Petitioner's Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order (*R. 184-190, 194*);

On April 22, 2005, the Respondent filed his Response to Petitioner's Objections to Proposed Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment (*R. 181-183*);

On July 20, 2005, the Respondent filed his Motion to Terminate Temporary Alimony and supported the motion with the Affidavit of Kenneth Lowry (*R. 242-243, 244-245*);

On July 26, 2005, the trial court sent the parties' counsel notice of a hearing upon the Respondent's Motion to Terminate Temporary Alimony scheduling a hearing for August 15, 2005 (*R. 247-248*);

On August 15, 2005, the Petitioner and her counsel appeared before the trial court pursuant to the notice given by the Court for hearing. The Respondent and his counsel did not appear but had filed a motion to continue the hearing. The trial court denied the Respondent's motion to continue the hearing and made findings using the proposed findings, conclusions and orders, and the objections to the proposed findings and orders of both the Petitioner and the Respondent (8/1/05 Tr. 3-10);

On August 17, 2005, the Petitioner submitted Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order and Judgments to the Respondent and the trial Court conforming to the findings and decisions of the trial court on August 15, 2005 (R. 280-281);

On August 25, 2005, the Respondent again filed his Objection to Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order and Judgments (R. 268-269). The Respondent also filed his Motion to Reconsider Rulings claiming he had been denied due process of law because he was not present at the hearing scheduled by the Court for August 15, 2005, despite having received notice of the hearing (R. 270-274);

On September 29, 2005, the trial court scheduled another hearing upon the proposed findings of fact, orders and judgments for November 1, 2005 (*R. 298-299*). On November 1, 2005 the trial court held a hearing upon the proposed findings of fact, conclusions of law, orders and judgments proposed by the Petitioner and the Respondent, and upon the parties objections to each others proposed findings (*R. 300, 11/01/05 Tr.1-12*);

On November 3, 2005, the trial court mailed to counsel for the Petitioner and the Respondent the Petitioner's proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law which the court had handwritten changes to the proposed findings and conclusions. (*Addendum A*);

On November 17, 2005, the Petitioner's counsel mailed the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Orders and Judgments, revised under the direction of the trial court, to the Respondent and to the trial court. (*R. 303-327, 328-335*);

The trial court signed and entered the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Orders and Judgments on November 21, 2005 (*303-327, 328-335*);

On December 2, 2005, the Respondent filed his untimely Objection to Petitioner Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order and Judgments.

These objections were identical to the Respondent's objections and issues previously considered by the trial court in the Respondent's and the Petitioner's proposed findings of fact, conclusions of law, orders and judgments, and the objections filed by both parties to the other parties proposed pleadings (338-343);

On December 12, 2005, the Petitioner filed her Reply to Respondent's Objections to Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order and Judgments asserting that the objections raised by the Respondent were the same objections which the Respondent had raised twice before and which had been resolved by the trial court on November 1, and 3, 2005, following a hearing upon the parties' proposed findings, and the parties objections thereto. The Petitioner asserted that the Respondent's objections were untimely because they were not filed by November 25, 2005, eight days after the findings, conclusions, orders and judgments were submitted to the trial court and the Respondent on November 17, 2005 (R.344-347); and

Rather than bringing the issue of his untimely and previously resolved objections before the trial court for resolution the Respondent filed his Notice of Appeal on December 9, 2005 (R. 348-349).

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